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This document combines all the work done by Ryerson 
students as part of the course ASC735 Heritage Conservation 
Theory and Practice. The different sites along the corridor were 
divided between seven groups between Davenport‐Avenue 
and Dupont‐Christie. Their work includes assessment of the 
current conditions in their respective sites, identification of 
points of intervention and proposals for the different sites.  

Introduction 
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Historical information: Native History
Despite the major urban development in the area, 
the shape of Davenport has been maintained over 
the years. The trail was created by Aboriginal 
people to avoid difficult terrain by following the 
base of the 13,500‐year‐old shoreline of Glacial 
Lake 
Iroquois. After Europeans arrived, the trail became 
a route for farmers to bring their goods to the city 
and a vital link for growing villages like Yorkville 
and Carlton. While the rest of downtown adopted a 
straight grid pattern, the old route kept its curves. 

Davenport Road, 1851 
Source: http://www.heritagetoronto.org/news/story/2011/07/05/davenport‐trail 
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Davenport Rd over the years
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Historical information: Urban Development

Information on separate document 



8 

 

 

 



9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The two main creeks feeding into Castle Frank Brook 
are the Yorkville Reach and the Nordheimer Reach.  
Yorkville Waterworks was built along the 
Nordheimer Reach in 1875 to take advantage of the 
waterflow, supplying water for domestic use and fire 
protection. Water hydrants and a fire telegraph 
system was introduced to the region, as a result.  
 
The High Level Pumping Station was built in 1906, on 
the site of the previous Yorkville Waterworks, to 
provide water to the new part of the City, then 
expanding north above the hill. It was enlarged in 
1910. It now houses the Central Control for pumping 
all Toronto water. 
 
Hydro Sub Station H on MacPherson; was built in 
1910 and expanded in 1924. It provides power to 
12,500 customers from Kilbarry Rd. to Charles St. 
and from Spadina Road to Mount Pleasant Rd. Its 
total load is 1212.7 Mega Volt Amps. The playground 
between these buildings marks the site of an old 
pond. 

Source: Lost Rivers Toronto 
http://www.lostrivers.ca/castllfrankbrook.htm 

Nordheimer Reach: The Spadina Storm Trunk Sewer 
follows this ravine and sanitary sewers feed to the Core 
Interceptor Sewer via a trunk sewer that roughly 
follows the old stream as far as Parliament Street. 
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Yorkville Reach: In this reach, Castle Frank 
Brook was known as Brewery Creek or 
Severn Creek, after John Severn, an 
Aldermen of the Village of Yorkville, who 
opened a brewery along this stream in 
1835. While the storm water runoff still 
flows down the valley, it does this in a very 
large pipe rather than an open stream. 
Sanitary sewerage flows via the Core 
Interceptor Sewer to The Main Sewage 
Treatment Plant at Ashbridge's Bay, except 
in the case of a Combined Sewer 
Overflow episode when it is diverted into 
the storm sewer and enters the Don at the 
foot of this valley.

Greenbelt: The diagram here shows a greenbelt that runs through the 
area of study, interrupted by gap near Davenport and Avenue Rd, where 
the Yorkville Reach of Castle Frank Brook used to run.  
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Yorkville Waterworks 

Hosiery 
Warehouse 

Creeds Storage Vaults 
Mono Lino Typesetting & former Toronto Daily Star 

261 Davenport 

 

Boake 
Manufacturing Co. 

Window Blind 
Factory 
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Creeds Storage Vaults. Located at 291 Davenport, this building was built after the Davenport Road 
widening in 1939, for fur storage. It is currently a residential building, in the art‐deco style of architecture.  
Architect unrecorded 

261 Davenport: This building has had a history of use 
related to radioactive products. In the 1940s it housed 
International Uranium Mining Company and Radium 
Luminous Industries. Later occupants were X‐Ray and 
Radium Instrument Ltd 
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Yorkville Water Works. (name later changed to High Level Pumping Station) Built in 1875 
along Castle Frank Brook. A larger facility was built 1889‐1890. 

Top: High Level Pumping Station in 1925 

Bottom left: Bridgeman Transformer Station in 1904 

Bottom right: Hydro Substation H Entrance 
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Hosiery Warehouse. Although it’s function 
is not labelled in the Goad’s maps, the 
building itself has been at this location 
since 1913. 
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Mono Lino Typesetting and former 
Toronto Daily Star. 

The site was previously owned by 
Conger Lehigh Coal & Wood Co. as it 
appears on the 1913 map. The original 
buildings do not stand here anymore. 
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Boake Manufacturing Co. This was a planing mill that located itself along the rail tracks 
around 1913. The structure of the site has been changed since, and is currently used 
by different institutions. 

Window Blind Factory. A window factory took up residence in the Annex around 1890. 
All traces of it has since been removed, and an apartment tower now sits in its place. 
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Tarragon Theatre 

TD Corner 

Bang & Olufsen Block 
162 Bedford. 

379 Davenport 

Loblaws Block 247 Davenport 

Avenue Diner 
Queen’s Club 
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The Loblaws Block. This block consists 
of buildings constructed between 1884 
and 1939. The right building was built 
between 1878 and 1884 and resembles 
the Romanesque Revival style of 
architecture. The rest of the buildings 
are of early 19th Century Victorian style. 
This stretch of Avenue Rd has survived 
both the Davenport and Avenue Road 
widening of 1930 and 1959. 
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The TD Corner. The SE corner of the 
same intersection has been home 
to TD since after the Davenport 
road widening in 1930. The 
presence of TD still remains at this 
corner, but it is of a much larger size 
now. 

Bang & Olufsen Block.  At the NE corner 
of the Davenport and Avenue Rd 
intersection, several Romanesque 
Revival style homes still stand here since 
1913. The corner building was home to 
the Bank of Nova Scotia, which 
relocated elsewhere after the widening.  
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162 Bedford. This mixed use building at 
the NW corner of the intersection of 
Bedford and Davenport has been here 
since 1910 

Avenue Diner.  Located at 222 Davenport, this diner has remained at this location 
since 1944. It has still retained its original interior décor and the overhanging sign 
outside, which was a prominent  street design along all the streets in the Annex. 

247 Davenport: This curtain wall buildings has been identified in 
the East Annex Heritage Study, completed in 1993. Built in the 
1950s by Page and Steele. the building has been altered quite a bit, 
but could be of possible historical interest as it was home to radio 
station CKEY during the 1960s.  
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The Queen’s Club. What was previously the 
Toronto Skating Club, was converted to one of 
Toronto’s premier indoor tennis clubs in 1957.  

379 Davenport. At the SW corner of Dupont and 
Davenport, this building used to function as a residential‐
commercial nodal point and shopping centre. The building 
that is currently at this location does not represent the 
importance of this nodal location.  

Tarragon Theatre. The theatre has been at this location 
since 1971 
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Existing conditions: Development pressures (sites of 
proposed and ongoing development) 

Proposed development 

Ongoing development 

1000 Bathurst  St 

App #: 11 229626 STE 20 SA

255 Christie St 

App #: 11 225334 STE 20 

124 Pears Ave

App #: 11 169962 STE 20 OZ

126 Spadina Rd 

App #:  11 164354 STE 20 SA

164 Avenue Rd
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West end
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